
     

 
All public meetings and events sponsored or conducted by the County of Marin are held in accessible sites. Requests for 
accommodations may be requested by calling (415) 473-4381 (voice) (415) 473-3232 (TTY) at least four work days in 
advance of the event. Copies of documents are available in alternative formats, upon written request. 

Contact the County’s Waste Management Division, at (415) 473-6647 for more information 

 

 

MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS & SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT 
JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

 
Board of Directors Meeting 

January 25, 2018 
Central Marin Police Authority 

250 Doherty Drive, Larkspur, CA 
9:00 – 9:30 AM 

 
AGENDA 

 
Call to Order. 
 

1. Open Time for Public Comment 
 
2. Introduce Ernest Klock new Executive Director 
 

Minutes 
 

3. JPA Board Meeting Minutes from May 25, 2017 (Action) 
 

Consent Agenda 
 
4. Solid Waste Legislation Update (Information) 
 
5. Receive and File Audit and Financial Statement for Year Ending June 30, 2016 (Action) 

 
6. Delegate Signature Authority to the Executive Director to Procure up to $15,000 of Graphics and Sign 

Development Services for the Zero Waste Schools Program using Already Budgeted Funds (Action) 
 

7. Reallocate $15,000 Already Budgeted for School Assemblies to a Farm to School Project (Action) 

Regular Agenda 
 
8. Recology Sonoma Marin Welcome and Presentation (Information) 

9. Report on Activities from the JPA Local Task Force (Information) 
 
10. Update from Staff on Recent and Ongoing Activities (Information) 
 
11. Appoint Budget Subcommittee Members  and Approve a FY 18-19 Budget Development Process and 

Schedule (Action) 
 

Adjourn 

- Next JPA Executive Committee Meeting = 4/26/18 and JPA Board Meeting = 5/24/18. 
- Agendas & staff reports also available at:  http://zerowastemarin.org/Agenda 

 

F:\Waste\JPA\AGENDA\18-01-25.doc 1/19/2018 11:58 AM 

The public parking lot in 
front of the CMPA is small, 

but there is ample parking at 
Piper Park, which is 

adjacent to the building. 
 



3 
DRAFT 

MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS & SOLID WASTE 
MANAGEMENT JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

 
Board of Directors Meeting 
Thursday May 25th, 2017 

Central Marin Police Authority 
250 Doherty Drive, Larkspur 

9:00 – 9:30 AM 
 

MINUTES 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT 
Cristine Alilovich, San Rafael 
Regan Candelario, Novato 
Todd Cusimano, Corte Madera 
David Donery, San Anselmo 
Dan Eilerman, County of Marin 
Craig Middleton, Belvedere  
Adam Politzer, Sausalito 
Garrett Toy, Fairfax 
 
OTHERS PRESENT 
David Catalinotto, San Rafael Fire 
Heather Abrams, Tam CSD 
 
 

MEMBERS ABSENT 
Greg Chanis, Tiburon 
Joe Chinn, Ross 
Jim McCann, Mill Valley 
Dan Schwarz, Larkspur 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
Pat Echols 
Steve Devine 
Judith Silver  
Casey Poldino 
 
 
 
 

Call to Order: The JPA Board meeting came to order at 9:00 AM. 
 

Minutes 
 

1. JPA Board Meeting Minutes from February 23, 2017  
M/s Cusimano, Toy to approve the minutes for the February 23, 2017 JPA Board meeting.  The 
motion passed unanimously. 
 

Regular Agenda 
2. Open Time for Public Comment  
Tamalpais Community Services General Manager Heather Abrams introduced herself to the 
Board. 
 
3. Report on Activities of the JPA Local Task Force 
No report given.  No LTF Advisory Members Present 

 
4. Update from Staff on Recent and Ongoing Activities  
Staff provided an update on recent and ongoing activities, which included ongoing site visits at 
each city by CalRecycle, a Toxic Away Day in West Marin in May, and a DEA Prescription 
Take-Back event in April. 
 
 
 
 



 

5. Elect Southern Marin & Ross Valley Cities Executive Committee Representatives  
M/s Cusimano, Donery to elect Member Politzer as the Southern Marin Cities Representative.  
M/s Donery, Cusimano to elect Member Toy to the Ross Valley Cities Representative.  The 
motions passed unanimously. 
 
6. Elect Chair and Vice Chair from Executive Committee Representatives  
M/s Politzer, Cusimano to elect Member Schutz as JPA Board Vice-Chair.  M/s Donery, 
Cusimano to elect member Toy as JPA Board Chair.  The motions passed unanimously. 
 
7. CalRecycle “2012-2015 Jurisdiction Review” Positive Compliance Letter  
Information item. No action necessary. 
 
8. FY 17/18 Budget and Assessment Schedule 
Staff provided a summary of the JPA budget adoption process, assessment information to the 
haulers, as well provided a detailed summary of the different fund centers and their proposed 
function should the proposed budget be approved.  Staff fielded questions from Board 
Members.   M/s Eilerman, Politzer to adopt the proposed FY 17/18 JPA Budget and provide 
signature authority for the associated Assessment Resolution.  The motion passed 
unanimously. 

 
9. Seventh Cycle Zero Waste Grant Forms   
Staff provided an update on the proposed changes to the Cycle 7 Zero Waste Grant Program. 
M/s Politzer, Candelario to approve the forms.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 
10. Signature Authority Delegation for Select Contracts to Carryout FY 17/18 Budget  
Staff summarized the request for the JPA Executive Director to have signature authority for 
select contracts during FY 17/18.  M/s Donery, Eilerman authorizing specific signature authority 
to the Executive Director.  The motion passed unanimously.   

 
11. Appoint Subcommittee and Delegate Authority for Zero Waste Special Project  
The Board discussed delegating to the Subcommittee authority to pick a project with up to 
$21,050 that could explore work on plastic bags, reviewing ordinances and possibly revise, or 
increasing organic diversion (with a project such as replicating Fairfax’s kitchen compost pail 
giveaway.  Member Toy volunteered to be on the Subcommittee and Member Chanis was also 
named to the Subcommittee. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

F:\Waste\JPA\MINUTES\17-05-27.doc 

1/19/2018 12:00 PM 
 



4 

MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS AND SOLID WASTE 

MANAGEMENT JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

Marin County Department of Public Works, P.O. Box 4186, San Rafael, CA  94913 

Phone:  415/473-6647 - FAX 415/473-2391 

 

Belvedere: 

  Craig Middleton 

 

Corte Madera: 

  Todd Cusimano 

 

County of Marin: 

  Matthew Hymel 

 

Fairfax: 

  Garrett Toy 

 

Larkspur: 

  Dan Schwarz 

 

Mill Valley: 

  Jim McCann 

 

Novato: 

  Regan Candelario 

 

Ross: 

  Joe Chinn 

 

San Anselmo: 

  David Donery 

 

San Rafael: 

  Jim Schutz 

 

Sausalito: 

  Adam Politzer 

 

Tiburon: 

  Greg Chanis 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Date:  January 25, 2018 
 
To: JPA Board Members 
 
From: Steve Devine, Program Manager 
 
Re: Solid Waste Legislation Update 
 
Attached is a summary of state solid waste legislation, mostly from last 
year’s session – prepared by Californian’s Against Waste.  As the next 
legislative session moves forward the JPA will provide support or opposition 
letters (with copies to the Board) pursuant to the Legislative Platform 
(attached). 
 
At this time, two bill subjects should be called out for Board attention, in 
particular: 
 
1. AB 319 addresses “leashing the lid” on plastic bottles.  This bill would 

support beverage container design in which the lid is tethered to the 
bottle.  Designs of this sort can help reduce lids from ending up in 
landfills – and have an even more important role in reducing litter and 
waterway debris.  The JPA members should strongly consider 
legislation that moves in this direction. 

 
and, 
 
2. Organics (composting) Infrastructure Support.  The bills AB 1036 and 

AB 1288 referenced in the CAW Report are related to supporting 
increased composting capacity in the State.  This concept is something 
your Board has already begun to explore (at the local level) by funding 
the currently underway “Material Flow and Capacity Analysis” project 
this fiscal year.  That project seeks to begin quantifying the long term 
needs for the County in terms of compostables, recycling and landfill 
capacity necessary to ensure cost effective regulatory compliance and 
progress towards zero waste. 

 
RECCOMENDATION 
Receive and file legislative report from Californian’s Against Waste.   
Information Only. 
 
Attachments. 
 

F:\Waste\JPA\JPA Agenda Items\JPA 180125\Item 4 - Solid Waste Legislation Update.doc

        1/19/2018 12:00 PM 



1/17/2018 Legislation

https://www.cawrecycles.org/legislation/ 1/5

Subscribe

Sign up with your email address to receive news and updates.

Email Address  SIGN UP

We respect your privacy.

Current Legislation 
The 2017-2018 session of the California legislature presents an opportunity for our

state to lead the way on several issues related to recycling, food waste and other

areas critical to a healthy environment.  (Click Here for Past Legislation)

AB 319 (Stone) Connect the Cap - Next Step:

Assembly Floor. AB 319 would require that

every plastic bottle sold in California has a cap

that is connected to its bottle by 2020. By

requiring connected caps, this bill would

prevent bottle cap pollution in our environment,

save bottle manufacturers money, and provide additonal material for recyclers to

recover. Bottle caps are currently recovered at a low rate compared to bottles and

are one of the top three items found in every large-scale beach clean-up in California

HOME ABOUT LEGISLATION ISSUES NEWS DONATE CONTACT

https://www.cawrecycles.org/
https://www.cawrecycles.org/past-legislation
https://www.cawrecycles.org/ab-1294-berman
https://www.cawrecycles.org/
https://www.cawrecycles.org/about-us/
https://www.cawrecycles.org/legislation/
https://www.cawrecycles.org/issues/
https://www.cawrecycles.org/news/
https://www.cawrecycles.org/donate-1/
https://www.cawrecycles.org/contact/


1/17/2018 Legislation

https://www.cawrecycles.org/legislation/ 2/5

where they are mistaken for food by wildlife, contribute to the growing plastic

pollution in our ocean, and contribute to local government clean-up costs. 

AB 1036 (McCarty) Composting - Next

Step: Senate Environmental Quality

Committee. AB 1036 seeks to address the

disparity between the statewide goals and

mandates to divert organic waste from landfills

and the contradicting regulations from state agencies involved in permitting organics

recycling facilities. If the state is to achieve diversion goals, including 75% organics

diversion by 2025 set by last year's Short Lived Climate Pollutant bill signed into

law, significant expansion and construction of organics infrastructure is needed. 

AB 1288 (Eggman) Tip Fee reform - Next

Step: Senate Environmental Quality

Committee. AB 1288 seeks to address the need

for more organics recycling infrastructure in

order to meet the 75% organic waste diversion

mandate set by the Short Lived Climate

Pollutant law, SB 1383. As cities begin to comply with these organic waste diversion

rates, they will have to face tough decisions when deciding how to fund new recycling

programs. Raising the funds at a statewide level will allow for the funding of needed

infrastructure without tough decisions at the local level. If the state is going to meet it's

organic waste diversion mandates, significant investments in additional organics

recycling facilities are needed. 

SB 705 (Allen) Sustainable Takeout Food

Packaging - Next Step: Senate Floor. SB

705 would ban expanded polystyrene

(commonly known as 'Styrofoam) food takeout

containers statewide. Food packaging such as

expanded polystyrene has a low recycling rate in the state due the lack of available

recycling locations as well as the contamination of food making it virtually useless for

recyclers. Polystyrene is one of the largest component of marine debris pollution

because it is easily transported by wind and rain into the marine environment. Once in

https://www.cawrecycles.org/ab1036mccarty
https://www.cawrecycles.org/ab1288eggman
https://www.cawrecycles.org/sb705allen


1/17/2018 Legislation

https://www.cawrecycles.org/legislation/ 3/5

the environment, it kills marine wildlife, including sea birds and turtles, which mistake it

for food. 

AB 954 (Chiu) Food Waste Reduction - SIGNED

INTO LAW! AB 954  is an important next step

from last year's CAW sponsored bill which

addressed confusing food date labels.

Confusing, misleading, and cryptic food labels

lead many consumers and stores to throw out perfectly healthy food every day. Date

labels on food come in a dizzying variety of forms including “use by,” “best before,”

“sell by,” and “enjoy by” dates, yet these simple markers are both poorly understood

and surprisingly under-regulated, such that their meanings and time frames are

generally not defined. 

AB 1158 (Chu) Carpet Recycling - SIGNED

INTO LAW! AB 1158 would increase carpet

recycling by 50% in two years by requiring a

carpet stewardship plan to achieve a 24%

recycling rate for postconsumer carpet by

January 1, 2020; the bill would authorize

CalRecycle to set future recycling benchmarks. The bill would protect consumer

recycling fees funds from inappropriate uses such as paying civil penalties assessed

by the State, or subsidizing the incineration of carpet. The bill would expand the

participants on the carpet advisory committee and require that the recommendations

of the committee be incorporated into the carpet stewardship plan, to the extent

feasible. The bill would require that carpets purchased for use by the State includes a

minimum amount of recycled carpet material. 

AB 1219 (Eggman)  The CA Good Samaritan

Food Donation Act - SIGNED INTO LAW! AB

1219 will strengthen the laws which protect food

donors in order to maximize food donations.

Currently many businesses, retailers, and

restaurants are either not aware of laws which

protect food donors or are confused with the current laws in place. Food is the single

https://www.cawrecycles.org/ab954chiu
https://www.cawrecycles.org/ab-1158
http://www.cawrecycles.org/ab1219eggman


1/17/2018 Legislation

https://www.cawrecycles.org/legislation/ 4/5

most prevalent item in the waste stream and at the same time we have a hunger crisis

in the state which affects one in eight Californians, including one in four children. By

making clarifications and strengthening particular provisions, we can help to get more

food to those who need it and less food going into landfills. CAW is a co-sponsor of

the bill along with the California Association of Food Banks.

AB 1294 (Berman) Recycled Content Claims -

SIGNED INTO LAW! This measure extends a

requirement for manufacturers or suppliers of

plastic products making claims related to the

recycled content of a plastic product to maintain

information and documentation to support that claim. Many environmentally conscious

consumers often buy for products that claim to be "green", and unfortunately there are

companies who seek to take advantage of that without having a product that is truly

green. Requiring companies to maintain this information helps protect California

consumers from companies that aren't truthful in their environmental claims. 

SB 458 (Wiener) Mobile Recycling Centers -

SIGNED INTO LAW!  

SB 458 authorizes the creation of five pilot

project bottle recycling centers across the state.

Until 2022, these centers will bring beverage

container recycling services to areas that currently have little to no ability to redeem

their deposits paid on beverage containers. CalRecycle is currently in the process of

drafting regulations related to the execution of this temporary program.

AB 509 (Frazier) Tire Recycling - Dead. Last

location- suspense file, Senate Appropriations

Committee. AB 509 would reform incentive

payments to increase the state's stagnant

recycling rate and allow recyclers to compete

with disposal, export and illegal dumping alternatives.  This would help expand the

state's tire recycling infrastructure to reduce greenhouse gases, create jobs, and cut

the statewide and local costs associated with tire cleanup. Fifty percent of the funds

https://www.cawrecycles.org/ab1294berman
https://www.cawrecycles.org/new-page-1
https://www.cawrecycles.org/new-page-1
https://www.cawrecycles.org/ab509frazier


1/17/2018 Legislation

https://www.cawrecycles.org/legislation/ 5/5

 

  

  

generated from this program will go to fund rubberized asphalt products; the

remainder will go to other recycled products. 

921 11TH STREET, SUITE 420  SACRAMENTO, CA  95814    PH:916.443.5422    FX: 916.443.3912.  ALL CONTENT ON THIS SITE © 2015 BY EACH INDIVIDUAL AUTHOR. ALL
RIGHTS RESERVED.

https://www.facebook.com/cawrecycles
https://twitter.com/cawrecycles
http://www.youtube.com/channel/UCIbLgHP5qWXHVAwARUnw-oQ
https://www.linkedin.com/company/3935159?trk=vsrp_companies_res_name&trkInfo=VSRPsearchId%3A3448218141432144031651%2CVSRPtargetId%3A3935159%2CVSRPcmpt%3Aprimary
http://instagram.com/californiansagainstwaste
https://www.pinterest.com/californiansaga/
https://twitter.com/cawrecycles


Marin County Hazardous and Solid Waste Management 
Joint Powers Authority 

STATE LEGISLATIVE PLAN  
 

APPROVED JUNE 24, 2010 
 
 
In accordance with the mission of Marin County Hazardous and Solid Waste 
Management Joint Powers Authority this Legislative Plan is intended to serve as 
a guide to the JPA’s policy positions on legislative issues that impact the JPA, 
the community and the environment.  This Legislative Platform of the JPA is 
intended to allow staff to respond to legislative proposals expeditiously in 
accordance with the following general and specific policy guidelines.  It shall be 
the general position of the JPA to support state and federal legislation that 
furthers the policy goals and program objectives of the Countywide Plan, the 
California Integrated Waste Management Act (AB939), the JPA’s Extended 
Producer Responsibility Resolution, and the adopted program objectives of the 
JPA’s Zero Waste Feasibility Study, or meets the specific legislative criteria 
described in this document. 
 
Staff, with the support of the Local Task Force, will track legislation and changes 
to proposed bills.  Staff will support or rescind support for bills on behalf of the 
JPA.  Changes, updates, or new drafts of this legislative plan will be submitted to 
the JPA Executive Committee for approval at one of their regularly scheduled 
meetings.   
 
The JPA would support legislation that:   

1)  ZERO WASTE 

a) Sets higher landfill diversion goals for local or state agencies, improves 
measurement and reporting system, or puts more responsibility on 
producers. 

 
b) Mandates strong waste prevention or recovery goals for products 

(such as supermarket bags and water bottles) through such 
mechanisms as consumer fees or deposits including support for a 
national bottle bill. 

 
c) Bans polystyrene foam or single use PVC items and requires 

disposable items (such as foodware or packaging) to be compostable 
or recyclable.  

 
d) Requires products to be made more recyclable (such as container lids) 

or compostable, or with more recycled content. 
 



e) Improves labeling of products that are compostable, recyclable or 
neither, and provides for State enforcement. 

 
f) Creates a strong producer responsibility framework or product 

category specific requirements for manufacturers to reformulate their 
products to make them less toxic and easier to reuse, repair,  recycle 
or compost, as well as take actual or financial responsibility for 
handling disposal of their products. 

 
g) Expands the California Beverage Container Recycling and Litter 

Reduction Act to further encourage redemption, include items such as 
wine and liquor bottles, milk jugs, or other plastic containers and 
promote reuse. 

 
h) Strengthens adequate and convenient space requirements for 

recycling and composting or restricts trash chutes that work against 
landfill diversion.  

 
i) Encourages deconstruction, and use of recycled materials in new 

construction. 
 

j) Mandates recycling and composting for businesses, multi-family 
residences, schools and institutions. 

 
k) Disallows materials such as yard trimmings or cardboard in landfills. 

Reduces or eliminates diversion credit for using materials as 
alternative daily cover that have higher and better uses, such as yard 
trimmings.  

 
l) Encourages siting of composting and anaerobic digestion facilities, 

especially those that are permitted to accept food scraps.   
 

m) Helps give proper greenhouse gas emissions reduction credit to waste 
prevention, recycling and composting, including creating a better 
system to allocate greenhouse gas. 

 
n) Encourages, provides instruction, and incentives for farmers to use 

compost, to replenish soils, reduce emissions and conserve water and 
resources.  

 
o) Increases payments to Cities and Counties or establishes fees at 

landfills to fund waste reduction activities. 
 

p) Supports domestic recycling facilities, such as paper mills, plastic 
manufacturing, to use and produce products from recycled materials.  

 



q) Provides financial incentives to businesses and manufacturers to 
produce less toxic products and to produce products that are easier to 
reuse, repair and recycle. 

 
2) TOXICS 

a) Requires manufacturers and distributors to develop and fund 
convenient systems for collecting and recycling/properly disposing of 
certain products (Universal Waste, Household Hazardous Wastes, or 
Medical Waste) at the end of their useful life. 

 
b) Strengthens California’s regulation of chemicals in consumer products. 

 
c) Expands the number of chemicals tracked in the State’s Bio-monitoring 

program (authorized in SB 1379). 
 

d) Supports the Department of Toxic Substances Control’s (DTSC) Green 
Chemistry Initiative. 
 

e) Strengthens chemical labeling requirements on consumer products. 
 

f) Empowers the Department of Toxic Substance Control to require 
manufacturers to submit health and environmental data on the 
chemicals they sell in California 

 
g) Mandates that recycled content be used in motor oil sold in California. 

 
h) Opposes or limits spraying of pesticides in urban areas, pending a 

rigorous alternatives assessment. 
 

i) Mandates proper disposal and reduced use of endocrine disruptors. 
 
 
The JPA would oppose legislation that:   

1) ZERO WASTE 
a) Allow the use of funds from the California Beverage Container 

Recycling Fund for any uses other than redemption, grant funding, 
program administration or waste reduction programs. 
 

b) Provide incentives to build high temperature “waste to energy” facilities 
that use materials that could be reduced, reused, composted or 
recycled, or includes such facilities as “renewable energy”  (Does not 
include dedicated boilers using wood chips and construction waste.) 

 
 
F:\Waste\JPA\Legislative Platform\Legislative Platform.doc 



5 

MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS AND SOLID WASTE 

MANAGEMENT JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

Marin County Department of Public Works, P.O. Box 4186, San Rafael, CA  94913 

Phone:  415/473-6647 - FAX 415/473-2391 

 

Belvedere: 

  Craig Middleton 

 

Corte Madera: 

  Todd Cusimano 

 

County of Marin: 

  Matthew Hymel 

 

Fairfax: 

  Garrett Toy 

 

Larkspur: 

  Dan Schwarz 

 

Mill Valley: 

  Jim McCann 

 

Novato: 

  Regan Candelario 

 

Ross: 

  Joe Chinn 

 

San Anselmo: 

  David Donery 

 

San Rafael: 

  Jim Schutz 

 

Sausalito: 

  Adam Politzer 

 

Tiburon: 

  Greg Chanis 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Date:  January 25, 2018 
 
To: JPA Board Members 
 
From: Steve Devine, Program Manager 
 
Re: Audit and Financial Statements for Year Ending June 30, 2016 
 
Attached is a transmittal letter from Maher Accountancy to the Marin 
County Hazardous and Solid Waste Joint Powers Authority Board of 
Directors dated June 27, 2017 regarding the annual audit for the Fiscal 
Year ending June 30, 2016.  There are no material findings of concern in 
the Audit. 
 
Also attached for your review is the subject Financial Statement and 
Auditor's Report, for the JPA, for the year ending June 30, 2016.   
 
A representative from Maher Accounting will be at this meeting if the 
Board has any questions. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Adopt a Motion to receive and file the attached Financial Statement and 
Auditor's Report for the year ending June 30, 2016. 
 
Attachments. 
 

F:\Waste\JPA\JPA Agenda Items\JPA 180125\Item 5 - Audit Transmittal Staff Report.doc 

1/19/2018 12:01 PM 



 

 

 

 Independent Auditors’ General Communication to Board 
 

June 27, 2017 

 

To the Board of Directors  
Marin County Hazardous & Solid Waste Management Authority 

We have audited the financial statements of the Marin County Hazardous & Solid Waste 
Management Authority for the year ended June 30, 2016, and have issued our report thereon 
June 26, 2017.  Professional standards require that we provide you with the following 
information related to our audit. 

Our Responsibility under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards 
As stated in our engagement letter dated March 16, 2017, our responsibility, as described by 
professional standards, is to express opinions about whether the financial statements prepared 
by management with your oversight are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity 
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.  Our audit of the financial statements does 
not relieve you or management of your responsibilities. 

Significant Audit Findings  
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The 
significant accounting policies used by Marin County Hazardous & Solid Waste Management 
Authority are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. No new accounting policies were 
adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during year. We noted no 
transactions entered into by the governmental unit during the year for which there is a lack of 
authoritative guidance or consensus. There are no significant transactions that have been 
recognized in the financial statements in a different period than when the transaction occurred. 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management 
and are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and 
assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive 
because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that 
future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. There are no 
significant estimates used in preparing the financial statements.   

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit  
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and 
completing our audit except that requested documentation was not available during fall when 
audit procedures were planned.  We recommended to management that expenditures should be 
grouped so as to compare to amounts authorized in the budget approved by the Board.  

 

 

1101 FIFTH AVENUE • SUITE 200 • SAN RAFAEL, CA 94901 



Independent Auditors’ General Communication to Board 
June 27, 2017 
Page 2 
 

  

 

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements  
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified 
during the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of 
management. Management has corrected all such misstatements.   Because the Authority’s general 
ledger is maintained for each fund according to the modified accrual basis of accounting, we 
recommended adjustments to allow for the presentation of the government-wide financial 
statements on the full accrual basis since generally accepted accounting principles require that both 
presentations be made in the financial statements.  The significant adjustments recommended for 
fiscal 2015-16 involved (a) recording prior year adjustments that were not implemented in the 
financial statements, (b) record grant income which was previously deferred, (c) record current 
year expenses posted in the subsequent year, (d) several reclassifications between expenditure 
accounts and, (e) record an inter-fund payable and receivable related to an expenditure from an 
incorrect fund. 

Any other misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management 
were immaterial, either individually or in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a 
whole.  

Disagreements with Management  
For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a 
financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that 
could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that 
no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.  

Management Representations  
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated June 27, 2017.  

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and 
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation 
involves application of an accounting principle to the governmental unit’s financial statements or a 
determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our 
professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the 
consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other 
accountants. 



Independent Auditors’ General Communication to Board 
June 27, 2017 
Page 3 
 

  

Other Audit Findings or Issues  
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and 
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the governmental unit’s 
auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship 
and our responses were not a condition to our retention. 

 

This information is intended solely for the use of Board of Directors and management of Marin 
County Hazardous & Solid Waste Management Authority and is not intended to be and should not 
be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Very truly yours, 
Maher Accountancy 
 



 

 

 

    

 
 
 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 
Independent Auditors’ Report 1 
 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 3 
 
Basic Financial Statements: 
 

Government-wide Financial Statements: 
 

Statement of Net Position 7 
 

Statement of Activities  8 
 

Fund Financial Statements: 
 

Balance Sheet 9 
 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
  Fund Balances 10 

 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 11 

 
Required Supplemental Information: 
 

Budget Comparison Schedules: 
 

Countywide Waste Management Program (CWM) 18 
 

Household Hazardous Waste Program (NNO) 19 
 

Zero Waste Program 20 
 

 
 
 



 

   1 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 

To the Board of Directors 
Marin County Hazardous & Solid Waste 
  Management Authority   

  
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Marin County Hazardous & 
Solid Waste Management Authority (the Authority) as of and for the year ended June 30, 
2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the 
Authority’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.   
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control 
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our audit opinions. 

1101 FIFTH AVENUE • SUITE 200 • SAN RAFAEL, CA 94901 



2 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of the Authority as of June 30, 2016, and the changes in 
financial position for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information, as listed in the 
table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of 
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained 
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide 
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Maher Accountancy 
San Rafael, California 
June 27, 2017 



Marin County Hazardous & Solid Waste 
Management Authority 

P.O. Box 4186 
San Rafael, CA  94913 

 

   3 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
The Management’s Discussion and Analysis provides an overview of the Marin County 
Hazardous & Solid Waste Management Authority (the Authority) financial activities for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2016.  Please read it along with the Authority’s financial statements, 
which begin on page 7. 
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 
The Authority’s net position was $1,038,000, an increase of $225,000 over the prior year.  Total 
revenues increase by $172,000 and total expenses decreased by $141,000.   
 
Budgetary comparison schedules are found starting on page 18. When comparing actual activity 
with budgeted, those schedules indicate the actual net increase in fund balance exceeded the 
planned increase by $37,000 in the Administrative (general) fund, $42,000 for the Household 
Hazardous Waste Management fund and $102,000 for the Zero Waste Fund. 
  
USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT 
 
This annual report consists of financial statements for the Authority as a whole.  The statement 
of net position and the statement of activities provide information about the activities of the 
Authority as a whole and present a long-term view of the Authority’s finances.  The fund 
financial statements present a short-term view of the Authority’s activities (they include only 
current assets expected to be collected in the very near future and liabilities expected to be paid 
in the very near future).  Presently, the Authority does not have any differences between the 
basic financial statements (statement of net position and statement of activities) and the fund 
financial statements (balance sheet and statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund 
balance).   
 
THE AUTHORITY AS A WHOLE 
 
One important question asked about the Authority’s finances is, “Is the Authority better or worse 
off as a result of the year’s activities?”  The information in the government-wide financial 
statements helps answer this question.  These statements include all assets and liabilities using 
the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the basis of accounting used by most private-
sector companies. The change in net position (the difference between total assets and total 
liabilities) over time is one indicator of whether the Authority’s financial health is improving or 
deteriorating.  However, one must consider other nonfinancial factors in making an assessment 
of the Authority’s health, such as changes in the economy and changes in the Authority’s 
boundaries, etc. to assess the overall health of the Authority. 



MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS & SOLID WASTE  
MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 

 

 4 

 
Changes in the Authority’s net position were as follows: 
 

Increase
2016 2015 (decrease)

Total assets 1,226,063$  1,196,352$  29,711$       
Total liabilities 187,810       383,507       (195,697)      
   Net position:

Restricted 893,069       731,886       161,183       
Unrestricted 145,184       80,959         64,225         

Total net position 1,038,253$  812,845$     225,408$     

 
The Authority’s total assets remained relatively consistent with the prior year.  The decrease in 
liability as compared to 2015 was largely due to paying invoices from the City of San Rafael for 
the Household Hazardous Waste program more quickly.  
 
Changes in the Authority’s revenues were as follows: 

2016 2015
Increase

(Decrease)
General revenues:

Investment earnings 1,416$         741$            675$             

Program revenues:
Solid waste management fees 3,078,045    2,865,470    212,575        
Operating grant - State of California 111,874       173,025       (61,151)         
Grant from County of Marin 18,841         -                   18,841          
Miscellaneous 755              175              580               
Investment earnings 885              671              214               

Total program revenue 3,210,400    3,039,341    171,059        

Total revenues 3,211,816$  3,040,082$  171,734$      
 

 
Fees from haulers and facility operators increased from 2015 primarily to a rate escalation of 7% 
intended to fund the planned increase in expenditures in the Zero Waste program. During the 
year, revenue related to the continuing Oil Payment Program Grant (OPP) was similar to 2015 
but the 2015 HD-20 Grant did not recur in 2016. The OPP grant revenue covers collection and 
recycling costs for used oil and oil filters and is administered by the California Department of 
Resources Recycling and Recovery (CalRecycle). 
  



MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS & SOLID WASTE  
MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 

 

 5 

 
Changes in the Authority’s expenses and net assets were as follows: 
 

Increase
2016 2015 (decrease)

Contract staff and support 741,294$   658,959$      82,335$     
Services and supplies 2,245,114  2,468,832     (223,718)    

Total expenses 2,986,408  3,127,791     (141,383)    
Less program revenues 3,210,400  3,039,341     171,059     

Net revenue (expenses) 223,992     (88,450)         312,442     
General revenues 1,416         741               675            

Change in net position 225,408$   (87,709)$       313,117$   

 
 
Staffing costs increased to reflect the full-year employment of the Zero Waste specialist that was 
on staff for half of the prior year along with normal wage adjustments for other staff.  The 
decrease in services and supplies is primarily because the unusually large grants of accumulated 
reserves to member agencies during 2014-15 that were reduced to normal levels in 2015-16. 
 
FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the Authority’s funds - the 
general fund and special revenue fund.   
 
The fund financial statements provide a short-term view of the Authority’s operations.  They are 
reported using an accounting basis called modified accrual which measures amounts using only 
cash and other short-term assets and liabilities (receivables and payables) that will soon be 
converted to cash or will soon be paid with cash. 
 
CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 
 
The Authority does not own any capital assets nor does it have any debt.  The Authority shares 
office space with the Marin County Public Works Department. 



MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS & SOLID WASTE  
MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 

 

 6 

 
THE FUTURE OF THE AUTHORITY 
 
With a growing awareness of our society’s environmental impacts, the public has shown an 
increasing interest in recycling, reuse, waste reduction and hazardous materials programs.  The 
incremental increase in products that are legislatively banned from landfill disposal and public 
requests for expansion of green programs demonstrates the growing demand for a greater scope 
of environmental services in the future.  The JPA’s goal of Zero Waste by 2025 will require 
substantial coordination of solid waste services, outreach programs, infrastructure, and regulation 
in the future. 
 

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers and creditors with a general 
overview of the Authority’s finances and to demonstrate the Authority’s accountability for the 
funds under its stewardship. 

Please address any questions about this report or requests for additional financial information to 
the address on our letterhead. 
 
Respectively submitted, 
 
Steve Devine 
Steve Devine, Manager  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS & SOLID WASTE  
MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 

 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.   
 

7 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
AS OF JUNE 30, 2016  

 
 
 

ASSETS
Cash 1,226,063$  

Total assets 1,226,063    

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 187,810       

Total liabilities 187,810       

NET POSITION
Restricted for Household Hazardous Waste program 644,128       
Restricted for Zero Waste program 248,941       
Unrestricted 145,184       

Total net position 1,038,253$  

 



MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS & SOLID WASTE  
MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 

 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.   
 

8 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

 
 

General

Household 
Hazardous 

Waste Program
Zero Waste 

Program Total
EXPENSES

Contract staff and support 366,294$    148,252$     226,748$   741,294$      
Services and supplies 69,807        1,716,533    458,774     2,245,114     

Total expenditures/expenses 436,101      1,864,785    685,522     2,986,408     

PROGRAM REVENUES
Waste management fees 498,155      1,719,927    859,963     3,078,045     
Operating grants - State of California -                  111,874       -                 111,874        
Grant from County of Marin -                  -                   18,841       18,841          
Miscellaneous income 755             -                   755               
Investment earnings -                  885              -                 885               

Total program revenue 498,910      1,832,686    878,804     3,210,400     

GENERAL REVENUES
Investment earnings 1,416            

Change in net position 225,408        

NET POSITION:
Net Position at June 30, 2015 812,845        

Net Position at June 30, 2016 1,038,253$   

 



MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS & SOLID WASTE  
MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 

 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.   
 

9 

BALANCE SHEET 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

 
 

Household
Countywide Hazardous Zero 

Waste Waste Waste
Management (Special Revenue (Special Revenue

(General Fund) Fund) Fund) Total
ASSETS

Cash 122,584$      828,291$           275,188$        1,226,063$   
Due from other funds 34,300          34,300          

Total assets 156,884$      828,291$           275,188$        1,260,363$   

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and 
   accrued expenses 11,700$        149,863$           26,247$          187,810$      
Due to other funds -                   34,300               -                     34,300          

11,700          184,163             26,247            222,110        

FUND BALANCES
Fund balances:

Assigned -                   644,128             248,941          893,069        
Unassigned 145,184        -                        -                     145,184        

Total fund balance 145,184        644,128             248,941          1,038,253     

Total liabilities and 
  fund balances 156,884$      828,291$           275,188$        1,260,363$   

 



MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS & SOLID WASTE  
MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 

 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.   
 

10 

 STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 
 

Countywide 
Waste 

Management 
(General Fund)

Household 
Hazardous 

Waste (Special 
Revenue Fund)

Zero Waste 
(Special 

Revenue Fund) Total

REVENUES
Solid waste management fees 498,155$      1,719,927$     859,963$       3,078,045$ 
Operating grants - State of California -                   111,874          111,874      
Grant - County of Marin 18,841$         18,841        
Miscellaneous income 755               -                     -                    755             
Investment earnings 1,416            885                 -                    2,301          

Total revenues 500,326        1,832,686       878,804         3,211,816   

EXPENDITURES
Contract staff and support 366,294        148,252          226,748         741,294      
Services and supplies:

Rent 16,941          -                     -                    16,941        
County financial service 5,904            -                     -                    5,904          
Grants to member agencies -                   27,839            208,864         236,703      
Contract services and supplies 46,962          1,688,694       249,910         1,985,566   

Total services and supplies 69,807 1,716,533 458,774 2,245,114
Total expenditures 436,101 1,864,785 685,522 2,986,408

Net change in fund balance 64,225 (32,099) 193,282 225,408

Fund balance at June 30, 2015 80,959          676,227          55,659           812,845      
Fund balance at June 30, 2016 145,184$      644,128$        248,941$       1,038,253$ 

 



MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS & SOLID WASTE  
MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY  

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

   
 

11 

 
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
 REPORTING ENTITY 
 
  The Marin County Hazardous & Solid Waste Management Authority was formed 

under a joint powers agreement between the County of Marin and eleven cities and 
towns within Marin County.  The purpose of Authority is to administer and enforce 
hazardous waste and solid waste management plans, as mandated by State Law.   

 
  The governing board of the Authority consists of one appointed official from each of 

the member agencies.  The Authority has contracted with Marin County Department 
of Public Works for administrative services and the City of San Rafael for 
Hazardous Waste management services. 
 

 INTRODUCTION 
  

The Authority’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP).  The Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) is responsible for establishing GAAP for state and local governments 
through its pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations.).   

 
 BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENTS 
 

The Authority’s basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting 
the Authority as a whole) and fund financial statements (reporting the Authority’s 
major funds).   
 
In the government-wide Statement of Net Position, the Authority’s activities are 
reported on a full accrual, economic resource basis, which recognizes all long-term 
assets and receivables as well as long-term debt and obligations.  The Authority’s net 
position is reported in two parts: (1) restricted net position and (2) unrestricted net 
position.  Net position for particular programs are deemed to be restricted.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS & SOLID WASTE  
MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY  

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

   
 

12 

 
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

 
 BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENTS (Continued) 
 
The government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net cost of 
the Authority’s function.  The function is supported by general government 
revenues.  The Statement of Activities reduces gross expenses by related program 
revenues. 

 
The net costs (by function) are normally covered by general revenues. 
 
The government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the Authority as an 
entity and the change in the Authority’s net position resulting from the current year’s 
activities. 
 

 FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

The financial transactions of the Authority are reported in individual funds in the 
fund balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, assigned or unassigned 
resources, fund balance, revenues and expenditures.   
 
All the Authority’s funds are government fund types. The focus of the governmental 
funds’ measurement (in the fund statements) is upon determination of financial 
position and changes in financial positions (sources, uses, and balances of financial 
resources) rather than upon net income.  The following is a description of the 
governmental funds of the Authority: 
 

General fund - accounts for the Authority’s general operations and 
administrative activities.   
 
Special revenue funds: 
       

                    Household Hazardous Waste fund - accounts for hazardous waste disposal  
for households provided primarily through Marin Sanitary Service (via a 
contract with City of San Rafael Fire Department) and Novato Sanitary 
District. 

 
       Zero Waste fund - accounts for the program to reduce and eliminate waste 

and obtains its resources from JPA tipping fees.  
 



MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS & SOLID WASTE  
MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY  

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

   
 

13 

 
 
 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 
 

Basis of accounting refers to the point at which revenues or expenditures/expenses 
are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements.  It relates to 
the timing of the measurement made regardless of the measurement focus applied.   
 
ACCRUAL: 
 
The governmental activities in the governmental-wide financial statements are 
presented on the accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recognized when earned 
and expenses are recognized when incurred. 
 
MODIFIED ACCRUAL: 
 
The government fund financial statements are presented on the modified accrual 
basis of accounting.  Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are 
recorded when susceptible to accrual; i.e., both measurable and available.  
“Available” means collectible within the current period or within 60 days after year-
end.  Expenditures are generally recognized when the related liability is incurred.  
The exception to this general rule is that principal and interest on general obligation 
long-term debt, if any, is recognized when due. 
 
There were no differences between the two bases of accounting for the year ended 
June 30, 2016.  
 

 FINANCIAL STATEMENT AMOUNTS 
 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS: 
 
The Authority has defined cash and cash equivalents to include cash on hand, 
demand deposits, and short-term investments with fiscal agent (County of Marin).   
 

 EQUIPMENT AND INFRASTRUCTURE  
 

It is the Authority’s policy to record purchases of items of furniture and equipment 
costing $1,000 or less as office supplies.  Items in excess of $1,000 are classified as 
capital outlay or capitalized.  As of June 30, 2016, no equipment purchases have met 
the capitalization criteria. 
 

 



MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS & SOLID WASTE  
MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY  

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

   
 

14 

 
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

 
BUDGET 
 
Both the original budget and the final budget (if changes were adopted) are included 
in these financial statements as approved by the Board of Directors.  The budgetary 
basis is the modified accrual basis of accounting.   
  
FUND BALANCE: 
 
In the fund financial statements, fund balance for governmental funds is reported in 
classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the 
Authority is bound to honor constraints on the specific purpose for which amounts in 
the funds can be spent.  Fund balance is reported in five components – nonspendable, 
restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned.    Following is a description of the 
components applicable to the Authority: 

 
Assigned – This component consists of amounts that are constrained by the 
District’s intent to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor 
committed.  The authority for assigning fund balance is expressed by the 
Board of Directors, Manager or their designee. 
 
Unassigned – This classification represents amounts that have not been 
restricted, committed or assigned to specific purposes within the general fund. 

 
2. CASH 

 
The Authority maintains all of its cash in the County of Marin pooled investment 
fund for the purpose of increasing interest earnings through pooled investment 
activities.  The Authority’s position in the pool is the same as the value of the pool 
shares.  Interest earned on the investment pool is allocated quarterly to the 
participating funds using the daily cash balance of each fund.  This pool, which is 
available for use by all funds, is displayed in the financial statements as “Cash.”   
 
The County Pool includes both voluntary and involuntary participation from external 
entities.  The State of California statutes require certain special districts and other 
governmental entities to maintain their cash surplus with the County Treasurer. 
 
The County’s investment pool is not registered with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission as an investment company.  Investments made by the Treasurer are 
regulated by the California Government Code and by the County’s investment 
policy.  The objectives of the policy are in order of priority, safety, liquidity, yield, 
and public trust.  The County has established a treasury oversight committee to 
monitor and review the  management of public funds  maintained  in  the  investment  



MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS & SOLID WASTE  
MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY  

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

   
 

15 

2. CASH (continued) 
 
pool in accordance with Article 6 Section 27131 of the California Government Code.  
The oversight committee and the Board of Supervisors review and approve the 
investment policy annually.  The County Treasurer prepares and submits a 
comprehensive investment report to the members of the oversight committee and the 
investment pool participants every month.  The report covers the types of 
investments in the pool, maturity dates, par value, actual costs and fair value.  
 
INTEREST RATE RISK 
 
In accordance with its investment policy, the County manages its exposure to 
declines in fair values by limiting the weighted average maturity of its investment 
pool to 540 days, or 1.5 years.  At June 30, 2016, the County’s investment pool had a 
weighted average maturity of 204 days. 
 
For purposes of computing weighted average maturity, the maturity date of variable 
rate notes is the length of time until the next reset date rather than the stated maturity 
date.  
 
CREDIT RISK 
 
State law and the County’s Investment Policy limits investments in commercial 
paper, corporate bonds, and medium term notes to the rating of “A” or higher as 
provided by Moody’s Investors Service or Standard & Poor’s Corporation.  The 
County’s Investment Policy limits investments purchased by Financial Institution 
Investment Accounts, a type of mutual fund, to United States Treasury and Agency 
obligations with a credit quality rating of “AAA.” 
 
CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK 
 
The following is a summary of the concentration of credit risk by investment type 
as a percentage of each pool’s fair value at June 30, 2016. 

 

  

Investments in Investment Pool
Federal agency - discount 78%
Federal agency - coupon 20%
Money market funds 2%

100%

Percent of
Portfolio

 
 
 



MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS & SOLID WASTE  
MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY  

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

   
 

16 

 
2. CASH (continued) 

 
CUSTODIAL CREDIT RISK 
 
For investments and deposits held with safekeeping agents, custodial credit risk is 
the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the County will not be 
able to recover the value of its investments or deposits that are in the possession of 
an outside party.  At year end, the County’s investment pool had no securities 
exposed to custodial credit risk.  
 
LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND 
 
The County Treasurer’s Pool maintains an investment in the State of California 
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), managed by the State Treasurer.  This fund 
is not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission as an investment 
company, but is required to invest according to California State Code.  Participants 
in the pool include voluntary and involuntary participants, such as special districts 
and school districts for which there are legal provisions regarding their investments.  
The Local Investment Advisor Board (Board) has oversight responsibility for LAIF.  
The Board consists of five members as designated by State statue.   

 
3. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, 
and destruction of assets; and errors and omissions.  During the year, the Authority 
purchased liability insurance with limits of $2,000,000 and a deductible of $1,000. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS & SOLID WASTE  
MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY  

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

   
 

17 

 
4. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

 
The County of Marin is a member to the Authority.  The County Public Works 
Department provided staffing for the Authority for a fee of $741,000 for the year.  
Additionally, the Authority paid the County of Marin $17,000 for rent and $6,000 for 
financial services. 
 
The Authority incurred expenditures of $1,424,000 under a contract with the City of 
San Rafael (a member government) to operate its household waste program.  As of 
June 30, 2016, accrued expenses to the City of San Rafael amounted to $130,000.  
 
As part of the various programs managed by the Authority, payments are made to 
various members. During the year the Authority made payments of $237,000 to its 
members. 
 

5. COMMITMENT 
 
In February 2013, the Authority and County of Marin entered into an agreement 
where the County will provide the Authority staffing.  The agreement has an 
expiration date of June 30, 2020 with provisions to extend the date by mutual 
agreement, or cancel by either party with 180 days written notice.  The cost of the 
agreement will be based on annual budgets adopted by the Authority.  The budgeted 
cost for fiscal 2016-17 is approximately $753,000. 
 

WAITING 



MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS & SOLID WASTE  
MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 

   
 

18 

BUDGET COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
COUNTYWIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT PROGRAM  

GENERAL (ADMINISTRATIVE) FUND  
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

 
 

Original Variance
and Final Over
 Budget  Actual (Under)

REVENUES:
Waste management fees 498,155$     498,155$   -$                  
Operating grant - State of California -                   -                 -                    
Miscellaneous income -                   755            755               
Investment earnings 1,500           1,416         (84)                

Total revenues 499,655       500,326     671               

EXPENDITURES:
Contract staff and support 364,294       366,294     2,000            
Services and supplies:

Legal 7,500           -                 (7,500)           
Accounting and audit fees 13,500         11,700       (1,800)           
Insurance 18,000         16,863       (1,137)           
Equipment repairs & maintenance 1,000           -                 (1,000)           
Rent 16,941         16,941       -                    
Training 1,500           567            (933)              
Mileage and routine travel 600              305            (295)              
Outreach 37,250         5,382         (31,868)         
Supplies and reproduction 5,500           3,865         (1,635)           
County financial service 5,850           5,904         54                 
Memberships -                   8,280         8,280            

Total services and supplies 107,641       69,807       (37,834)         
Total expenditures 471,935       436,101     (35,834)         

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) 
OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES 27,720$       64,225       36,505$        

Fund balance as of June 30, 2015 80,959       
Fund balance as of June 30, 2016 145,184$   



MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS & SOLID WASTE  
MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 

   
 

19 

BUDGET COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
HOUSEHOLD HAZARDOUS WASTE PROGRAM  

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

 
Variance

Original Over
and Final  Actual (Under)
 Budget 

REVENUES:
Solid waste management fees 1,719,927$  1,719,927$  -$                 
State aid - OPP 80,413         111,874       31,461         
Investment earnings 500              885              385              

Total revenues 1,800,840    1,832,686    31,846         

EXPENDITURES:
Contract staff and support 148,252       148,252       -                   
HHW oversight 149,724       109,511       (40,213)        
Novato HHW grant 27,838         27,838         -                   
Bulb and battery program -                   -                   -                   
Contract services 1,355,902    1,393,813    37,911         
Legal 2,500           -                   (2,500)          
HD-20 grant expenses -                   -                   -                   
Sharps program 76,000         77,358         1,358           
Oil Payment Program 110,826       104,446       (6,380)          
Insurance -                   -                   -                   
Memberships and dues -                   -                   -                   
Conferences -                   1,000           1,000           
Reprographic -                   -                   -                   
Supplies -                   2,567           2,567           

Total expenditures 1,871,042    1,864,785    (9,824)          

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) 
OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES (70,202)$      (32,099)        41,670$       

Fund balance June 30, 2015 676,227       

Fund balance June 30, 2016 644,128$     
 

 
 
 
 
 



MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS & SOLID WASTE  
MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 

   
 

20 

BUDGET COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
ZERO WASTE PROGRAM 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 
 

Original Variance
and Final Over
 Budget  Actual (Under)

REVENUES:
Waste management fees 859,963$   859,963$        -$                    
Grant from County of Marin -                 18,841            18,841            
Investment earnings 500            -                      (500)                

Total revenues 860,463     878,804          18,341            

EXPENDITURES:
Contract staff and support 226,748     226,748          -                      
Services and supplies:

Legal 2,000         -                      (2,000)             
Development 40,000       51,688            11,688            
Outreach 200,000     117,466          (82,534)           
Schools 50,000       65,179            15,179            
Other -                 15,577            15,577            

Total services and supplies 292,000     249,910          (42,090)           
Zero Waste grants 250,000     208,864          (41,136)           

Total expenditures 768,748     685,522          (83,226)           

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) 
OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES 91,715$     193,282          101,567$        

Fund balance as of June 30, 2015 55,659            

Fund balance as of June 30, 2016 248,941$        
 

 
 
 
 



6 

MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS AND SOLID WASTE 

MANAGEMENT JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

Marin County Department of Public Works, P.O. Box 4186, San Rafael, CA  94913 

Phone:  415/473-6647 - FAX 415/473-2391 

 

Belvedere: 

  Craig Middleton 

 

Corte Madera: 

  Todd Cusimano 

 

County of Marin: 

  Matthew Hymel 

 

Fairfax: 

  Garrett Toy 

 

Larkspur: 

  Dan Schwarz 

 

Mill Valley: 

  Jim McCann 

 

Novato: 

  Regan Candelario 

 

Ross: 

  Joe Chinn 

 

San Anselmo: 

  David Donery 

 

San Rafael: 

  Jim Schutz 

 

Sausalito: 

  Adam Politzer 

 

Tiburon: 

  Greg Chanis 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Date:  January 25, 2018 
 
To: JPA Board Members 
 
From: Steve Devine, Program Manager 
 
Re: Delegate Signature Authority to the Executive Director to Procure 

up to $15,000 of Graphics and Sign Development Service for the 
Zero Waste Schools Program Using Already Budgeted Funds 

 
The current Fiscal Year 17-18 Budget already includes $40,000 to 
support “infrastructure” in the Zero Waste Schools Program.  These 
funds are used for items such as waste stations (recycling & compost 
bins), durable signage, refillable water stations, etc.  JPA support in this 
area is proving to be some of the most cost effective means to reduce 
material going to landfill. 
 
This agenda item asks for the Board to delegate procurement authority 
of up to $15,000 (of the total $40,000 ZWSP infrastructure line item) to 
procure design services for signage supporting a “model zero waste 
school” in partnership with the Marin County Office of Education.  The 
JPA cannot procure services in excess of $50,000 without specific 
authorization.  The JPA Board delegated procurement authority for 
outreach services at your May meeting – but this specific project was not 
contemplated at that time.   
 
The most efficient way for the JPA to deliver this project is to procure 
these services with our current outreach contractor.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Adopt a Motion delegating procurement authority to the Executive 
Director to use up to $15,000 of already budget funds to procure design 
service in support of the Zero Waste Schools Program – with the 
express flexibility to use an existing vendor already under contract. 
 
 
 

F:\Waste\JPA\JPA Agenda Items\JPA 180125\Item 6 - Graphics and Signage Zero Waste 

Schools.doc 

1/19/2018 12:01 PM 



7 

 

MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS AND SOLID WASTE 

MANAGEMENT JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

Marin County Department of Public Works, P.O. Box 4186, San Rafael, CA  94913 

Phone:  415/473-6647 - FAX 415/446-7373 

 

 

Belvedere: 

  Craig Middleton 

 

Corte Madera: 

  Greg Cusimano 

 

County of Marin: 

  Matthew Hymel 

 

Fairfax: 

  Garrett Toy 

 

Larkspur: 

  Dan Schwarz 

 

Mill Valley: 

  Jim McCann 

 

Novato: 

  Regan Candelario 

 

Ross: 

  Joe Chinn 

 

San Anselmo: 

  David Donery 

 

San Rafael: 

  Jim Schutz 

 

Sausalito: 

  Adam Politzer 

 

Tiburon: 

  Greg Chanis 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Date: January 25, 2018 
 
To: JPA Board Members 
 
From: Steve Devine, Program Manager 
 
Re: Reallocate $15,000 Already Budgeted for School Assemblies to 

Farm to Schools Project 
 
The FY 17/18 budget includes a line item in the Zero Waste Fund of 
$15,000 for school assemblies. The JPA was able to provide those 
assemblies to all schools in the Zero Waste Schools Program in the fall 
of 2017 utilizing funds from the prior fiscal year.  We are requesting the 
Board approve reallocating these funds to a project to provide the JPA a 
report and recommendations on the Farm to School movement’s direct 
correlation to waste reduction in schools.  

According to a USDA study published in 2015, data shows the Farm to 
School effort helps to reduce plate waste. Nationwide, more than 42,000 
schools have Farm to School Programs, which operate in conjunction 
with the National School Lunch Program and other school meal 
programs. Seventy-five percent of respondents with Farm to School 
Programs reported at least one of the following positive benefits as a 
result of participating in Farm to School: 

� Reduced plate waste (17%) 
� Improved acceptance of healthier school meals (28%) 
� Increased participation in the school meals programs (17%) 
� Increased support from parents and community members for 

healthier school meals (39%) 

Neighboring schools in the Bay Area are generally more aggressive on 
this front.  For example, the Oakland USD, a district of 107 schools, has 
approximately 60 school gardens, a district wide school garden program, 
56 salad bars, and more than half of their produce is served fresh.   
Novato USD, a district of 14 schools, has an on-farm gleaning project, 
school garden programs in 13 schools, and local organic produce 
offered at all schools through their collaboration with Marin Organics and 
Marin Produce.



 

MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS AND SOLID WASTE 

MANAGEMENT JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

Marin County Department of Public Works, P.O. Box 4186, San Rafael, CA  94913 

Phone:  415/473-6647 - FAX 415/446-7373 

  

A Farm to Student Collaborative is being coordinated by the Marin County Department 
of Health and Human Services (HHS). This is part of HHS’ Healthy Eating Active Living 
initiative. We are looking to evaluate and work collaboratively with this group to increase 
use of locally produced food at Marin schools in an effort to reduce school lunch waste.   

The Healthy, Hunger-Free Kids Act of 2010 formally established a Farm to School 
Program within the USDA to improve access to local foods in schools. Thanks to this 
Act and other strategies, the national childhood obesity trend is slowly reversing, and 
our children are eating more fruits and vegetables, and have better overall health.  

Farm to School programs encourage schools to buy farm-fresh foods from their local 
community to serve in the lunch program. Students gain access to healthy, nutritious 
food as well as educational opportunities such as farm field trips, garden-based 
learning, and recycling/composting programs. These efforts can reduces food waste, 
both on the production side as well as plate waste.  

Recommendation 
Adoption a Motion reallocating $15,000 from schools assemblies to a project evaluating 
potential waste reduction benefits from Farm to School programs.  
 
 

f:\waste\jpa\jpa agenda items\jpa 180125\item 7 - schools food waste reduction.doc 

1/19/2018 12:02 PM 



8 

MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS AND SOLID WASTE 

MANAGEMENT JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

Marin County Department of Public Works, P.O. Box 4186, San Rafael, CA  94913 

Phone:  415/473-6647 - FAX 415/473-2391 

 

 

Belvedere: 

  Craig Middleton 

 

Corte Madera: 

  Greg Cusimano 

 

County of Marin: 

  Matthew Hymel 

 

Fairfax: 

  Garrett Toy 

 

Larkspur: 

  Dan Schwarz 

 

Mill Valley: 

  Jim McCann 

 

Novato: 

  Regan Candelario 

 

Ross: 

  Joe Chinn 

 

San Anselmo: 

  David Donery 

 

San Rafael: 

  Jim Schutz 

 

Sausalito: 

  Adam Politzer 

 

Tiburon: 

  Greg Chanis 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Date: January 25, 2018 
 
To: JPA Board Members 
 
From: Steve Devine, Program Manager 
 
Re:  Recology Sonoma Marin Welcome and Presentation 
 
Recology Sonoma Marin recently completed the purchase of 
substantially all the assets of the Ratto Group.  In most of Marin County 
the Ratto Group provided solid waste collection services via its Redwood 
Empire Disposal subsidiary which had collection franchises with the 
Bolinas Public Utilities District, the Stinson Beach Water District and the 
County of Marin.  In addition, the Ratto Group provided service to the 
Novato Sanitary District via its Novato Disposal Service subsidiary. 
 
Recology has a long history in the Bay Area dating back to 1921 in San 
Francisco – and more information on the company is available on its 
website at www.recology.com.  
 
Fred Stemmler is the new General Manager of Recology Sonoma Marin 
and has offered to provide an introduction to the company at this Board 
Meeting.  Following is some information on Mr. Stemmler and Recology 
via background information provided to the County:  “As the General 
Manager of Recology Sonoma Marin operations, Fred will plan, direct, 
and evaluate all aspects of Recology’s organics, recyclables, and solid 
waste collection programs to ensure safe, efficient, and high-quality 
service is provided to all customers.  Fred was recently the General 
Manager of Recology Western Oregon, and is experienced in running 
topnotch collection, processing and diversion based operations, while 
creating effective and collaborative public education programs and 
services, including the start-up of an Artist in Residence Program. Prior 
to becoming General Manager in 2012, Fred held several key positions 
with Recology, including Operations Manager at Recology Vacaville 
Solano and Recology Sunset Scavenger, and Financial Compliance 
Manager for the Recology Corporate Finance and Accounting 
Department. Since joining Recology in 2008, Fred graduated from two 
internal leadership programs and participated in long term strategic 
planning and development committees that focused on business process 
improvement and excellence in service.

 



 

2 
 

Prior to Recology, Fred worked as a certified public accountant and finance 
professional serving a variety of Fortune 500 businesses and began his 
professional career with Deloitte.  Fred sits on the board for multiple non-profit 
organizations, is an active Chamber of Commerce member, and has served on 
civic and state advisory boards relating to Oregon’s long term diversion planning, 
community leadership, and municipal budget and audit reviews.  Fred graduated 
from the University of Southern California with a BS in Accounting.” 
 
Recommendation 
Receive presentation.  Information Only. 

 
 

f:\waste\jpa\jpa agenda items\jpa 180125\item 8 - recology welcome.doc  

1/19/2018 12:04 PM 



9 

MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS AND SOLID WASTE 

MANAGEMENT JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

Marin County Department of Public Works, P.O. Box 4186, San Rafael, CA  94913 

Phone:  415/473-6647 - FAX 415/473-2391 

 

Belvedere: 

  Craig Middleton 

 

Corte Madera: 

  Todd Cusimano 

 

County of Marin: 

  Matthew Hymel 

 

Fairfax: 

  Garrett Toy 

 

Larkspur: 

  Dan Schwarz 

 

Mill Valley: 

  Jim McCann 

 

Novato: 

  Regan Candelario 

 

Ross: 

  Joe Chinn 

 

San Anselmo: 

  David Donery 

 

San Rafael: 

  Jim Schutz 

 

Sausalito: 

  Adam Politzer 

 

Tiburon: 

  Greg Chanis 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Date:  January 25, 2018 
 
To: JPA Board Members 
 
From: Steve Devine, Program Manager 
 
Re: Report on Activities of the JPA Local Task Force (LTF) 
 
Your Local Task Force (LTF) advisory body met, with staff support, on 
1/4, 2/1, 4/5, 8/2, 10/4 and 12/6 in 2017.  Per the LTF Procedures, this 
item on the Agenda provides the opportunity for that advisory body to 
give updates to the Board.  For reference, following is the LTF roster: 
 

Haulers/Facility Operators 

Marin Sanitary Service Patty Garbarino 

Bay Cities Refuse (Alternate) Greg Christie 

Mill Valley Refuse Jim Iavarone 

Redwood Landfill Ramin Khany 

Special Districts Franchising Solid Waste 

Novato Sanitary District Dee Johnson, LTF Vice-Chair 

Las Gallinas Sanitary District Russ Greenfield 

Las Gallinas Sanitary District (Alt) Judy Schriebman 

Environmental Organizations 

Sierra Club, Green Coalition David Haskell 

Sustainable Novato Delyn Kies 

NatureBridge Jennie Pardi, LTF Chair 

Public Members 

County of Marin David Green 

San Rafael Vacant (City soliciting). 

Ross Valley Renee Goddard 

Novato Matt McCarron 

Southern Marin Vacant (JPA solicitation circulating). 

 
RECCOMENDATION 
Receive update from Local Task Force.  Information Only. 
 

F:\Waste\JPA\JPA Agenda Items\JPA 180125\Item 9 - LTF Update to JPA Board.doc 

1/19/2018 12:06 PM 



10 

MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS AND SOLID WASTE 

MANAGEMENT JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

Marin County Department of Public Works, P.O. Box 4186, San Rafael, CA  94913 

Phone:  415/473-6647 - FAX 415/473-2391 

 

Belvedere: 

  Craig Middleton 

 

Corte Madera: 

  Todd Cusimano 

 

County of Marin: 

  Matthew Hymel 

 

Fairfax: 

  Garrett Toy 

 

Larkspur: 

  Dan Schwarz 

 

Mill Valley: 

  Jim McCann 

 

Novato: 

  Regan Candelario 

 

Ross: 

  Joe Chinn 

 

San Anselmo: 

  David Donery 

 

San Rafael: 

  Jim Schutz 

 

Sausalito: 

  Adam Politzer 

 

Tiburon: 

  Greg Chanis 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Date:  January 25, 2018 
 
To: JPA Board Members 
 
From: Steve Devine, Program Manager 
 
Re: Updates from Staff on Recent and Ongoing Activities 

(Information) 
 
Staff will provide an update on recent and ongoing activities. 
 
RECCOMENDATION 
Receive oral report.  Information Only 
 
 

F:\Waste\JPA\JPA Agenda Items\JPA 180125\Item 10 - Staff Update.doc 

1/19/2018 12:07 PM 



11 

MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS AND SOLID WASTE 

MANAGEMENT JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

Marin County Department of Public Works, P.O. Box 4186, San Rafael, CA  94913 

Phone:  415/473-6647 - FAX 415/473-2391 

Belvedere: 

  Craig Middleton 

 

Corte Madera: 

  Todd Cusimano 

 

County of Marin: 

  Matthew Hymel 

 

Fairfax: 

  Garrett Toy 

 

Larkspur: 

  Dan Schwarz 

 

Mill Valley: 

  Jim McCann 

 

Novato: 

  Regan Candelario 

 

Ross: 

  Joe Chinn 

 

San Anselmo: 

  Dave Donery 

 

San Rafael: 

  Jim Schutz 

 

Sausalito: 

  Adam Politzer 

 

Tiburon: 

  Greg Chanis 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Date:  January 25, 2018 
 
To: JPA Board Members 
 
From: Steve Devine, Program Manager 
 
Re: Appoint Two Budget Subcommittee Members and Approve a FY 18-

19 Budget Development Process and Schedule 
 
To help develop the proposed FY 18-19 JPA Budget, the Board should 
appoint a two-member Budget Subcommittee from the Executive 
Committee [Toy, Hymel (Alt. Eilerman), Schutz (Alt. Alilovich), Politzer, and 
Candelario].  Recent years, past practice has been to appoint 
representatives from the jurisdictions represented by the Chair, Vice-Chair 
and/or the County.  
 
The Subcommittee would meet with staff to help review a proposed FY 
18/19 budget that would then be reviewed by the Executive Committee in 
April – before appearing before the full Board for consideration of adoption 
in May.  The recommended schedule is as follows: 
 
1. February 28, 2018 San Rafael Fire Department submits the HHW 

Facility Budget request to the JPA. 
 
2. Week of March 26, 2018, JPA staff submits a draft budget request and 

associated fee resolution to Budget Subcommittee. 
 
3. Week of April 2, 2018 Budget Subcommittee meets with staff for review 

of draft budget and fee resolution.  (Follow up if necessary). 
 
4. April 26, 2018, Executive Committee adopts a budget and assessment 

resolution recommendation. 
 
5. May 24, 2018, budget and fee resolution adopted by full JPA Board. 
 
Recommendation 
Adopt a Motion appointing two Budget Subcommittee Members and 
approve a FY 18-19 budget development process and schedule. 
 
cc: Robert Sinnott, San Rafael Fire Department 
 

F:\Waste\JPA\JPA Agenda Items\JPA 180125\Item 11 - Budget Subcommittee.doc 

1/19/2018 12:08 PM 


	Item 1 - Agenda
	Item 3
	Item 4
	Item 4 - Attachment 1 - CAW Solid Waste Legislation Summary
	Item 4 attachment 2
	Item 5
	Item 5 - Attachement 1 - Marin Waste 2016 Communication to Board
	Item 5 - Attachment 2 - Financial Statements and Auditors Report
	INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
	MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
	Statement of Net POSITION
	STATEMENT OF ACTIVITiES
	balance sheet
	Statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in Fund balances
	1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
	Reporting Entity
	The Marin County Hazardous & Solid Waste Management Authority was formed under a joint powers agreement between the County of Marin and eleven cities and towns within Marin County.  The purpose of Authority is to administer and enforce hazardous was...
	The governing board of the Authority consists of one appointed official from each of the member agencies.  The Authority has contracted with Marin County Department of Public Works for administrative services and the City of San Rafael for Hazardous...
	Introduction
	The Authority’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).  The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is responsible for establishing GAAP for state and local governments through its ...
	Basic Financial Statements
	Government-Wide Statements
	The Authority’s basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the Authority as a whole) and fund financial statements (reporting the Authority’s major funds).
	In the government-wide Statement of Net Position, the Authority’s activities are reported on a full accrual, economic resource basis, which recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term debt and obligations.  The Authority’s net...
	1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
	Basic Financial Statements
	Government-Wide Statements (Continued)
	The government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net cost of the Authority’s function.  The function is supported by general government revenues.  The Statement of Activities reduces gross expenses by related program revenues.
	The net costs (by function) are normally covered by general revenues.
	The government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the Authority as an entity and the change in the Authority’s net position resulting from the current year’s activities.
	Fund Financial Statements
	The financial transactions of the Authority are reported in individual funds in the fund balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, assigned or unassigned resources, fund balance, revenues and expenditures.
	All the Authority’s funds are government fund types. The focus of the governmental funds’ measurement (in the fund statements) is upon determination of financial position and changes in financial positions (sources, uses, and balances of financial res...
	General fund - accounts for the Authority’s general operations and administrative activities.
	Special revenue funds:
	Household Hazardous Waste fund - accounts for hazardous waste disposal
	for households provided primarily through Marin Sanitary Service (via a contract with City of San Rafael Fire Department) and Novato Sanitary District.
	Zero Waste fund - accounts for the program to reduce and eliminate waste and obtains its resources from JPA tipping fees.
	1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
	Basis of Accounting
	Basis of accounting refers to the point at which revenues or expenditures/expenses are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements.  It relates to the timing of the measurement made regardless of the measurement focus applied.
	Accrual:
	The governmental activities in the governmental-wide financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred.
	Modified accrual:
	The government fund financial statements are presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when susceptible to accrual; i.e., both measurable and available.  “Available” m...
	There were no differences between the two bases of accounting for the year ended June 30, 2016.
	Financial Statement Amounts
	Cash and cash equivalents:
	The Authority has defined cash and cash equivalents to include cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term investments with fiscal agent (County of Marin).
	Equipment and infrastructure
	It is the Authority’s policy to record purchases of items of furniture and equipment costing $1,000 or less as office supplies.  Items in excess of $1,000 are classified as capital outlay or capitalized.  As of June 30, 2016, no equipment purchases ha...
	SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
	Budget
	Both the original budget and the final budget (if changes were adopted) are included in these financial statements as approved by the Board of Directors.  The budgetary basis is the modified accrual basis of accounting.
	Fund Balance:
	In the fund financial statements, fund balance for governmental funds is reported in classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the Authority is bound to honor constraints on the specific purpose for which amounts...
	Assigned – This component consists of amounts that are constrained by the District’s intent to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed.  The authority for assigning fund balance is expressed by the Board of Directors, M...
	Unassigned – This classification represents amounts that have not been restricted, committed or assigned to specific purposes within the general fund.
	2. CASH
	The Authority maintains all of its cash in the County of Marin pooled investment fund for the purpose of increasing interest earnings through pooled investment activities.  The Authority’s position in the pool is the same as the value of the pool shar...
	The County Pool includes both voluntary and involuntary participation from external entities.  The State of California statutes require certain special districts and other governmental entities to maintain their cash surplus with the County Treasurer.
	The County’s investment pool is not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission as an investment company.  Investments made by the Treasurer are regulated by the California Government Code and by the County’s investment policy.  The objecti...
	2. CASH (continued)
	pool in accordance with Article 6 Section 27131 of the California Government Code.  The oversight committee and the Board of Supervisors review and approve the investment policy annually.  The County Treasurer prepares and submits a comprehensive inve...
	Interest Rate Risk
	In accordance with its investment policy, the County manages its exposure to declines in fair values by limiting the weighted average maturity of its investment pool to 540 days, or 1.5 years.  At June 30, 2016, the County’s investment pool had a weig...
	For purposes of computing weighted average maturity, the maturity date of variable rate notes is the length of time until the next reset date rather than the stated maturity date.
	Credit Risk
	State law and the County’s Investment Policy limits investments in commercial paper, corporate bonds, and medium term notes to the rating of “A” or higher as provided by Moody’s Investors Service or Standard & Poor’s Corporation.  The County’s Investm...
	Concentration of Credit Risk
	The following is a summary of the concentration of credit risk by investment type as a percentage of each pool’s fair value at June 30, 2016.
	2. CASH (continued)
	Custodial Credit Risk
	For investments and deposits held with safekeeping agents, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the County will not be able to recover the value of its investments or deposits that are in the possess...
	Local Agency Investment Fund
	The County Treasurer’s Pool maintains an investment in the State of California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), managed by the State Treasurer.  This fund is not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission as an investment company, but ...
	3. RISK MANAGEMENT
	The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; and errors and omissions.  During the year, the Authority purchased liability insurance with limits of $2,000,000 and a deductible of $...
	4. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
	The County of Marin is a member to the Authority.  The County Public Works Department provided staffing for the Authority for a fee of $741,000 for the year.  Additionally, the Authority paid the County of Marin $17,000 for rent and $6,000 for financi...
	The Authority incurred expenditures of $1,424,000 under a contract with the City of San Rafael (a member government) to operate its household waste program.  As of June 30, 2016, accrued expenses to the City of San Rafael amounted to $130,000.
	As part of the various programs managed by the Authority, payments are made to various members. During the year the Authority made payments of $237,000 to its members.
	5. COMMITMENT
	In February 2013, the Authority and County of Marin entered into an agreement where the County will provide the Authority staffing.  The agreement has an expiration date of June 30, 2020 with provisions to extend the date by mutual agreement, or cance...


	WAITING
	BUDGET COMPARISON SCHEDULE
	COUNTYWIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT PROGRAM
	HOUSEHOLD HAZARDOUS WASTE PROGRAM
	SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
	zero waste program
	SPECIAL REVENUE FUND




	Item 6
	Item 7
	Item 8
	Item 9
	Item 10
	Item 11



